
   

 
Mississippi Headwaters Board 

Meeting Agenda 
Chase on the Lake, Walker Ballroom 

502 Cleveland Blvd., Walker, MN 56484    
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89295093485   
 

 October 28, 2021 
 8:00 am 

 
 

 

8:00 AM 

 Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

8:05 AM Approve/Amend 

 

 Agenda  

 Consent Agenda – September ’21 Minutes & Expenses 

 

Correspondence 

 October Press Release 

 BWSR article airing 11/1 

 

 

Planning and Zoning (Actions) 

 

 H10a21- Vicki Ronkowski variance- Hubbard County- Action 

 

Action / Discussion Items: 

   

 Change of date for next board meeting?- suggest 11/19- Discussion 

 Executive Directors report- Discussion 

 Biennial Conference in session 

 

 

Meeting Adjourned - Thank you 

 

     

Mtgs:  October 28th, ’21, 9:00 AM to 1:00 PM-  Mississippi Headwaters Board Biennial Conference. 

 November 26, 2021 9:00 AM- Cass County Courthouse, Walker, MN  



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 

 

Draft Minutes 

 

Monthly Expenses 

 

 



 

Mississippi Headwaters Board 

September 15, 2021 

Miss. Headwaters Board Conference Room 

322 Laurel St. 

Brainerd, MN 

Optional interactive techology: 

MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

Members present by Roll Call:  Ted Van Kempen (Hubbard), Ann Marcotte (Aitkin) Steve Barrows (Crow Wing), 
Davin Tinquist (Itasca), Neal Gaalswyk (Cass), Mike Wilson (Morrison), and Tim Terrill (Executive Director). 
 
Others Present:  Nickolaus Phillips (GBAJPB), Bryan Haugen (Hubbard Env. Serv.) and Amy Kowalzek (Morrison 
ESD) 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   
 
Chair Marcotte asked if there were any additions to the agenda.  None offered.  M/S (Gaalswyk/Barrows) to 
approve of the agenda.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
M/S (Barrows/Van Kempen) to approve of the Consent agenda.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
Hubbard County Shoreland Ordinance-  Bryan Haugen explained that the Ordinance was updated mainly to 
include Vacation Rental By Owner (VRBO) language.  Comm. Van Kempen said that they worked on this for 
months and the county board approved of it last month.   M/S (Van Kempen/Gaalswyk) to approve of 
certification of the ordinance.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
H9a21- Wall Variance-  Bryan explained the Wall’s are looking at building a new 2 story building on Wolf Lake 
which will exceed the impervious surface.  Comm. Marcotte asked for clarification of location for the 
structure, and asked for clarification of map.  Bryan provided another map on page 138. Marcotte asked if the 
BOA agreed to how much fill was being brought in.  Bryan said the board was in favor to help with gravity flow 
of sewer from house to septic.  with the following conditions   M/S (Gaalswyk/Van Kempen) to approve of 
certification of the variance.  Gaalswyk made a suggestion to provide a paragraph summary of the soils and 
septic rather than all the technical information in the packet.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
M9a21- Smiedja/Retka Variance-  the residence is seeking a variance from setback from the Miss. river to 
replace the existing, failing septic system with a new system.  The board asked for pictures and staff remarks 
on the property, and Amy provided them.  The MHB board was happy that the trees by the Miss. River will 
remain intact and only a few trees where the septic will be located will be disturbed.   M/S (Wilson/Barrows) 
to approve of certification of the variance.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 



GBA8a21- Sonja Upton Variance-  Nick provided explanation of the 8 variances needed to take down existing 
cabin and replace with new house to correct a lot line structure crossing.  Nick stated that the impervious 
surface would remain the same.  Comm. Gaalswyk pointed out a typo in one of the resolutions.  Nick said he 
would double check that resolution.  Comm. Marcotte noted that there is a lot of impervious being stuffed 
into a small area, and when does the BOA say “No.”  Nick said the board wanted the structure to stay in the 
footprint of the existing structure.  Discussion ensued about the lot line and the 2’ distance between the lot 
line and structure.  Comm. Barrows agreed with Marcotte that many of the counties have these type of septic 
systems on small lots and how do all the 8 MHB counties handle that.  Height of house was discussed as well 
along with septic upgrade and impervious surface.  A stormwater plan will be implemented.  Comm. Gaalswyk 
added that the septic is compliant, the impervious is exceeded and there is a stormwater plan to mitigate the 
difference.  M/S (Tinquist/Gaalswyk) to approve of certification of the variance.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
GBA9a21- Michael & Kim Roysland Variance-  Nick explained they are seeking 5 variances for the property.  
Comm. Marcotte asked if there has been an official survey because the picture shows one of the structures 
being over the property line.  Nick noted that their overhang from the cabin overhangs now, but they are 
tearing it down and building a new dwelling that will no longer be on the neighbors property.  A well question 
was asked by Gaalswyk and Nick explained that a new well will be needed and will be obtained through the 
Dept. of Health.   M/S (Gaalswyk/Barrows) to approve of certification of the variance.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
GBA9b21- Mark & Bonita Haley Variance-  4 variances being sought to add a garage to the lot.  Comm. 
Marcotte asked for questions, after hearing none:   
 
 
Action/Discussion: 

1. Letter of Support for Land Exchange-  Tim and Comm. Tinquist gave a brief overview of a meeting held 
which resulted in the landowner, Bill Heig, wanting a land exchange between the Chippewa National 
Forest and Bill Heig land.  Comm. Tinquist gave some context and recommended that the Letter of 
Support be approved.  Comm. Gaalswyk asked if the MHB could approve the letter of support 
contingent on a formal support from Itasca county.  Davin said he would do that.  M/S 
(Tinquist/Barrows) to approve of the MHB Letter of Support contingent on formal county support.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
2. Baxter and MHB Joint Powers Agreement-  Tim explained that the LCCMR grant was approved for 

Whiskey Creek and this JPA agreement will allow the MHB to formally recognize Baxter as a partner 
and funnel LCCMR dollars from MHB to Baxter. M/S (Barrows/Wilson) to approve of the MHB Letter 
of Support contingent on formal county support.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

3. Next Board meeting-  the board approved through consensus to change the board meeting to 10 am to 
accommodate Comm. Newland’s request. 

 
Executive Directors Report 

1. Attended LSOHC council meeting and requested $9,591,400 from them.  The project ranked really well, 
but questions regarding BIPOC came up regarding our project.  I responded that the MHB has a formal 
MOU with the Leech Lake Band, and that we worked with them on a conservation project in the future.  

2. Held Resourcetainment meeting with counties that participated last year.  Eight people attended and 
we looked at each event and looked at positives and negatives of the event.  Then we reviewed the 



survey results and saw similar patterns in events.  Ideas about future events were discussed like a 
paddleboard race down to CW State Park and a bike ride back up to Kiwanis. 

3. Went to Bemidji and met with project partners to discuss Lake Irving project and gave interview for 
Board of Water & Soil Resources on the MHB role in this.  An article and short video will be produced 
about this and be placed on BWSR website and social media. 

 
County Updates 
 Hubbard updated their shoreland management ordiance and are using money to close their garbage 
transfer station. 
 Morrison- The county administrator, engineer, and jail administrator are retiring and looking for 
qualified individuals.  Comm. Wilson would like to have a discussion regarding approval of variances with 
Commissioners. 
 Itasca-  Busy with budget meetings an new jail. 
 Crow Wing-  Approved preliminary budget of $3.99 million and looking at their Capital Improvement 
Plan. 
 Cass- Approved preliminary budget of $3.5 million, updated their Comprehensive Plan, having 
discussion with the Leech Lake Band of Ojibwe over the Indian Child Welfare Act compliance. 
 Aitkin- The SWCD bought a survey grade GIS survey tool to measure and identify culverts in townships 
for help with flood control and mitigation 
 
M/S (Barrows/Van Kempen) to adjourn. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
    
  
 
 
___________________________________    ______________________________       
Chair Anne Marcotte       Executive Director Tim Terrill   
     



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2021 09 TO 2021 09

Report generated: 10/07/2021 14:43
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      1

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
74830    61000        Salaries & Wages - Regular    
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                    5,362.08           5,362.08
                                                             PER 02                    5,651.74          11,013.82
                                                             PER 03                    5,523.01          16,536.83
                                                             PER 04                    5,523.00          22,059.83
                                                             PER 05                    5,523.00          27,582.83
                                                             PER 06                    5,523.00          33,105.83
                                                             PER 07                    8,284.53          41,390.36
                                                             PER 08                    5,523.01          46,913.37
 21/09    385 09/10/21  PRJ pr0910 1210910    1210910     1210                          2,761.50         49,674.87
      pay091021  WARRANT=210910  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       
 21/09   1178 09/24/21  PRJ pr0924 1210924    1210924     1210                          2,761.51         52,436.38
      pay092421  WARRANT=210924  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:         52,436.38       CREDITS:                .00      NET:          52,436.38
 
 
74830    61200        Active Insurance              
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                    1,685.31           1,685.31
                                                             PER 02                    1,686.81           3,372.12
                                                             PER 03                    1,686.06           5,058.18
                                                             PER 04                    1,686.06           6,744.24
                                                             PER 05                    1,686.06           8,430.30
                                                             PER 06                    1,701.66          10,131.96
                                                             PER 07                    1,699.82          11,831.78
                                                             PER 08                    1,699.82          13,531.60
 21/09    385 09/10/21  PRJ pr0910 1210910    1210910     1210                            861.49         14,393.09
      pay091021  WARRANT=210910  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       
 21/09   1178 09/24/21  PRJ pr0924 1210924    1210924     1210                            838.33         15,231.42
      pay092421  WARRANT=210924  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:         15,231.42       CREDITS:                .00      NET:          15,231.42
 
 
74830    61300        Employee Pension & FICA       
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                      772.64             772.64
                                                             PER 02                      816.54           1,589.18
                                                             PER 03                      797.03           2,386.21
                                                             PER 04                      797.04           3,183.25
                                                             PER 05                      803.15           3,986.40
                                                             PER 06                      797.04           4,783.44
                                                             PER 07                    1,215.42           5,998.86
                                                             PER 08                      797.03           6,795.89
 21/09    385 09/10/21  PRJ pr0910 1210910    1210910     1210                            398.52          7,194.41



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2021 09 TO 2021 09

Report generated: 10/07/2021 14:43
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      2

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
      pay091021  WARRANT=210910  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       
 21/09   1178 09/24/21  PRJ pr0924 1210924    1210924     1210                            398.52          7,592.93
      pay092421  WARRANT=210924  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          7,592.93       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           7,592.93
 
 
74830    62100        Telephone                     
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                       57.08              57.08
                                                             PER 02                       57.28             114.36
                                                             PER 03                       57.32             171.68
                                                             PER 04                       57.28             228.96
                                                             PER 05                       57.22             286.18
                                                             PER 06                       57.16             343.34
                                                             PER 07                       56.86             400.20
                                                             PER 08                       57.17             457.37
 21/09    836 09/21/21  API 006205            154933              28017                     1.54            458.91
      W C092121  SEPTEMBER CTC & 9/21-9/21 LD C CONSOLIDATED TELECOM
                                                                                       
 21/09    836 09/21/21  API 006205            154933              28017                      .82            459.73
      W C092121  SEPTEMBER CTC & 9/21-9/21 LD C CONSOLIDATED TELECOM
                                                                                       
 21/09   1178 09/24/21  PRJ pr0924 1210924    1210924     1210                             55.00            514.73
      pay092421  WARRANT=210924  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            514.73       CREDITS:                .00      NET:             514.73
 
 
74830    62680        Non-Employee Per Diems        
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 02                      200.00             200.00
                                                             PER 03                      600.00             800.00
                                                             PER 04                       50.00             850.00
                                                             PER 05                      200.00           1,050.00
                                                             PER 06                      450.00           1,500.00
                                                             PER 08                      100.00           1,600.00
 21/09    834 09/21/21  API 003356            154935              28033                    50.00          1,650.00
      W C092121  MHB MEETING 9/15/21            HUBBARD COUNTY TREAS
                                                                                       
 21/09    834 09/21/21  API 101580            154936              28052                    50.00          1,700.00
      W C092121  MHB MEETING 9/15/21            WILSON, MICHAEL     
                                                                                       
 21/09    834 09/21/21  API 002809            154937              28049                    50.00          1,750.00
      W C092121  MHB MEETING 9/15/21            TINQUIST, DAVIN C   
                                                                                       
 21/09    834 09/21/21  API 001099            154938              28037                    50.00          1,800.00
      W C092121  MHB MEETING 9/15/21            MARCOTTE, ANNE      
                                                                                       



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2021 09 TO 2021 09

Report generated: 10/07/2021 14:43
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      3

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          1,800.00       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           1,800.00
 
 
74830    62990        Prof. & Tech. Fee - Other     
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                   10,692.83          10,692.83
                                                             PER 02                      525.00          11,217.83
                                                             PER 03                   96,595.00         107,812.83
                                                             PER 04                   56,018.05         163,830.88
                                                             PER 05                      525.00         164,355.88
                                                             PER 06                   30,525.00         194,880.88
                                                             PER 07                    6,971.41         201,852.29
                                                             PER 08                    6,925.00         208,777.29
 21/09   1739 09/30/21  GEN                                                               525.00        209,302.29
      RECURRING  FINANCIAL SERVICE                                  
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:        209,302.29       CREDITS:                .00      NET:         209,302.29
 
 
74830    63320        Employee Mileage              
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 04                      166.10             166.10
                                                             PER 07                      280.18             446.28
                                                             PER 08                      497.28             943.56
 21/09   1272 09/24/21  GNI AUG                                                           142.80          1,086.36
      WF PCARD   1434 - LSOHC Mtg                                   
                 TIM TERRILL - OOP                                                     
 21/09   1272 09/24/21  GNI AUG                                                            58.80          1,145.16
      WF PCARD   1434 - august board Mtg                            
                 TIM TERRILL - OOP                                                     
 21/09   1272 09/24/21  GNI AUG                                                            39.20          1,184.36
      WF PCARD   1434 - ACLARA lake assoc. Mtg                      
                 TIM TERRILL - OOP                                                     

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          1,184.36       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           1,184.36
 
 
74830    63340        Hotel & Meals Travel Expense  
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 04                        8.73               8.73
                                                             PER 08                        4.63              13.36
 21/09   1271 09/24/21  GNI AUG                                                           109.42            122.78
      BREM PCARD LSOHC lodging                                      
                 TIM TERRILL -  CROWNE PLAZA MPLS-WEST                                 
 21/09   1271 09/24/21  GNI AUG                                                            25.86            148.64
      BREM PCARD meal for LSOHC meeting                             
                 TIM TERRILL -  CHILI'S PLYMOUTH #1751                                 

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            148.64       CREDITS:                .00      NET:             148.64



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2021 09 TO 2021 09

Report generated: 10/07/2021 14:43
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      4

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
 
 
74830    64090        Office Supplies               
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                       37.20              37.20
                                                             PER 02                       14.30              51.50
                                                             PER 03                       16.11              67.61
                                                             PER 04                       23.85              91.46
                                                             PER 05                       45.16             136.62
                                                             PER 07                       71.15             207.77
                                                             PER 08                      185.69             393.46
 21/09   1271 09/24/21  GNI AUG                                                           132.68            526.14
      BREM PCARD printer ink                                        
                 TIM TERRILL -  OFFICEMAX/DEPOT 6590                                   

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            526.14       CREDITS:                .00      NET:             526.14

          GRAND TOTAL --- DEBITS:        288,736.89       CREDITS:                .00      NET:         288,736.89 
 
        20 Records printed
                                          ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Korie Wiggins **                                          



 

Clearwater  *  Hubbard  *  Beltrami  *  Cass  *   Itasca  *  Aitkin  *  Crow Wing  *  Morrison 

 

    

 
 

 

IMMEDIATE PRESS RELEASE 11/1/21 

Media Contact 

Tim Terrill 

218-824-1189 

timt@mississippiheadwaters.org 

www.mississippiheadwaters.org 

322 Laurel St. 

Brainerd, MN  56401 

 

Mississippi Headwaters Board Provides Support for Land Exchange 
 

The Mississippi Headwaters Board wrote a letter of support to Representative Pete Stauber requesting 

that a land exchange occur in Itasca County between two parcels of land owned by a private citizen 

and the Chippewa National Forest (CNF) respectively.   

 

Protecting land on or near the Mississippi river is a significant role of the Mississippi Headwaters 

Board (MHB), and sometimes that involves the MHB board working with legislative members.  In 

June of 2021, a private citizen purchased 34 acres of land and 1,100 feet of shoreline on Lake 

Winnibigoshish adjacent to CNF lands and wanted to exchange that parcel with another parcel owned 

by the CNF located further away from the lake.  The MHB took action by writing a letter of support to 

Representative Pete Stauber and CNF Forest Supervisor Michael Stansberry because their 

Comprehensive Plan supports increasing public land holdings along the Mississippi river and 

Headwaters lakes through land exchanges with willing private landowners.  Davin Tinquist, Itasca 

County Commissioner, also sought and received unanimous formal support from the Itasca County 

board regarding the land exchange as well.  If the land exchange is approved, this action will protect 

the natural and recreational values of Lake Winnibigoshish and Mississippi river while providing 

continuity to the existing CNF lands within the area. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.mississippiheadwaters.org/


2021 November Snapshots

Stormwater site protects Lake Bemidji

BEMIDJI  ꟷ What’s good for Lake 
Irving is good for Lake Bemidji, the 
Mississippi River and the downstream 
communities that rely on the river as a 
source of drinking water.

Beltrami Soil & Water Conservation 
District’s (SWCD) stormwater 
treatment project under construction 
this fall is designed to improve the 
water quality of nutrient impaired Lake 
Irving. The Mississippi River, which 
flows through both lakes, supplies St. 
Cloud and parts of the Twin Cities with 
drinking water.

“We’re cleaning up water that goes 
into the Mississippi River,” said 

Beltrami SWCD Board 
Supervisor Sam 
Christenson. “The 
impacts can go way 
downstream.”

The $490,000 project 
ꟷ a stormwater 
treatment wetland, 
iron enhanced sand 

filter and re-meandered stretch of 
ditch that collects city stormwater 
runoff from an 886-acre drainage area 
including a Bemidji industrial park ꟷ 
taps a $156,000 Clean Water Fund 
grant from the Minnesota Board of 
Water and Soil Resources (BWSR).

Beltrami SWCD’s Clean Water Fund-backed project targets nutrient-impaired 
Lake Irving, but its benefits extend to Lake Bemidji and beyond. The work  
will safeguard a source of Twin Cities drinking water, contain the flow in  
case of an oil spill, beautify a bike trail and increase pollinator habitat.

Zach Gutknecht, 
center, Beltrami SWCD 
clean water specialist, 
visited the construction 
site of a Clean 
Water Fund-backed 
stormwater treatment 
project Sept. 9 in 
Bemidji with HR Green 
lead scientist Shawn 
Tracy, right, and BWSR 
Board Conservationist 
Chad Severts. An iron 
enhanced sand filter 
is part of the project 
designed to improve 
the water quality of 
nutrient-impaired Lake 
Irving. The Mississippi 
River connects Lake 
Irving to Lake Bemidji; 
the work also will 
protect Lake Bemidji’s 
water quality. 
Photo Credits:  
Ann Wessel, BWSR

www.bwsr.state.mn.us 1

Christenson

Project partners 
include the 
city of Bemidji, 
the Mississippi 
Headwaters Board 
and Enbridge.



“What we’re trying to do 
here is reduce as much of 
the negative impact from 
human use around the 
lake as possible,” said Zach 
Gutknecht, Beltrami SWCD 
clean water specialist. He 
said water-quality issues 
arise in lakes with a 50:1 
watershed-to-lake surface 
area ratio. The higher the 
ratio, the more potential for 
pollution. “Lake Irving has a 
500:1 ratio.”

Project partners include 
the city of Bemidji, the 
Mississippi Headwaters 
Board (MHB) and Enbridge. 

At the city’s request, 
the SWCD expanded the 
project to re-meander 
an 800-foot-long stretch 
of ditch and plant native 
grasses, forbs and shrubs 
throughout the site. Those 
plants will not only improve 
aesthetics along the Paul 
Bunyan State Trail but also 
add pollinator habitat.

Bemidji will draw $300,000 
from its stormwater utility 
fund to cover most of the 
remaining cost. The city will 
own the treatment system 
and maintain the iron-
enhanced sand filter.

“Bemidji is the first city 
on the Mississippi, so 
stormwater treatment 
is very important,” said 
Craig Gray, city engineer 
and public works director. 
“Our city is on Lake Bemidji 
and Lake Irving and the 
Mississippi River. Without 
those three bodies of 
water, we really don’t have 
a city. The water quality 
of those bodies of water 
is very, very important to 
us, so we really try to do 
whatever we can to reduce 
any nutrient loading going 
into those lakes and the 
river.”

Street sweeping and existing 
stormwater ponds weren’t 

enough 
to cut 
phosphorus 
loading to 
Lake Irving 
by 268 
pounds 
a year ꟷ 
the 36% 
reduction 
the Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency (MPCA) 
determined necessary 
to meet water-quality 
standards. 

This project will keep an 
estimated 233 pounds of 
phosphorus ꟷ 87% of the 
reduction goal ꟷ out of Lake 
Irving each year. Phosphorus 
feeds the algae that can 

turn lakes 
green.

Lake Irving 
ranked 
in the 
Top 5 for 
phosphorus 
removal in a 
Mississippi 

Headwaters Board study 
that identified more than 
150 potential pollution-
reduction projects for 12 
cities on the first 400 miles 
of the Mississippi River. An 
$81,000 Clean Water Fund 
grant from BWSR backed 
the study, which gave 
cities stormwater planning 
options that prioritized, 
targeted and calculated 

the effectiveness of best 
management practices.

“When we protect cities 
and we work on projects 
like Lake Irving, we’re doing 
a service not just to the 
people that live there but 
everyone downstream,” said 
Tim Terrill, MHB executive 
director.

“The Mississippi is used 
for drinking water in the 
Twin Cities,” Terrill said, 
and improving water 
quality upstream is more 
cost-effective than treating 
it downstream. “The 
Mississippi isn’t just a river 
that has a recreational 
value. It has a very 
important drinking water 
component to it.”

The MHB developed a 
public-private partnership 
with Enbridge, which 
contributed $50,000 to 
the Lake Irving project. An 
Enbridge oil pipeline runs 
south of the site, which 
incorporates an outlet 
structure that can be closed 
in the event of an oil spill.

Work began in early 
September.

www.bwsr.state.mn.us 2

The Lake Irving ditch is being re-meandered to look and function more 
like a stream. It’s part of the Beltrami SWCD’s Clean Water Fund-backed 
stormwater treatment project, which is designed to benefit nutrient-
impaired Lake Irving and estimated to keep 233 pounds of phosphorus out 
of the lake each year. 

“The lake is kind of a 
regional hub for the 
local economy. It’s a 
fairly well-developed 
lake for the area, 
and it’s a major 
ecological resource as 
well. There’s several 
different important 
fish species including 
walleye and muskie.

”— Zach Gutknecht, 
Beltrami SWCD

Gray Terrill

https://www.pca.state.mn.us/sites/default/files/wq-iw8-57e.pdf
https://www.pca.state.mn.us/sites/default/files/wq-iw8-57e.pdf


www.bwsr.state.mn.us 3

Left: Because the ditch flowing into the constructed wetland intersected with groundwater, water was pumped to the surface during construction, 
and then allowed to infiltrate back through the sand. As a precaution, a skimmer cleaned water before it discharged to the lake. Middle: From left: 
Gutknecht observed progress at the site Sept. 9 with Tracy and Severts. Right: Clouds and trees reflect in water at the site.

Shawn Tracy, a lead scientist 
with HR Green, worked with 
Bemidji on its stormwater 
retrofit analysis that led 
to a Lake Irving feasibility 
study. He was in Bemidji in 
early September to monitor 
construction.

By then, contractors had 
hauled in topsoil to boost 
the success of native seeds 
sown at the sandy site.

A skimmer mechanism 
at the temporary outlet 
cleaned water before it 
discharged to the lake. 
Along with additional 
de-watering, the skimmer 
safeguards groundwater 
that intersects with the 

ditch. During construction, 
the ditch was closed off via 
the outlet structure that 
Enbridge would close in 
case of an oil spill.  

Tracy described how the 
Lake Irving project will work: 

Water from the re-
meandered ditch will enter 
the stormwater wetland. 
There, sediment-bound 
phosphorus will settle out. 
Dissolved phosphorus will 
be stripped from runoff as 
it flows through the iron-

enhanced sand filter to Lake 
Irving.

Construction was expected 
to finish in October. 
A Conservation Corps 
Minnesota & Iowa crew 
was slated to complete 
additional seeding and live-
staking this season.

“Lake Irving’s impaired. Lake 
Bemidji is close, and we 
know Lake Irving has been 
saving Lake Bemidji since 
we’ve been here, since the 
city’s been here. Anything 
we can do to reduce the 
impacts either to Irving or 
Lake Bemidji is going to 
prolong that,” Gutknecht 
said.

“ Lake Irving’s impaired. 
Lake Bemidji is close, and 

”— Zach Gutknecht, Beltrami SWCD

we know Lake Irving has been 
saving Lake Bemidji since we’ve 
been here, since the city’s been 
here. Anything we can do to 
reduce the impacts either to Irving or 
Lake Bemidji is going to prolong that.



 

 

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

 
Hubbard Ronkowski Variance 

 

 



















































































Variance Application 48-V-21 by Vicki Ronkowski  
2020 Aerial Imagery w/2’ Elevation Contours Overlain 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Variance Application 48-V-21 by Vicki Ronkowski  
2020 Aerial Imagery w/2’ Elevation Contours Overlain 

 

 

 



August 23, 2021 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Hearing/Meeting Staff Report 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Variance Application 48-V-21 by Vicki Ronkowski: Lots 5 and 6, Crescent Beach, Section 1, Township 145, 
Range 32, Farden Township on Wolf Lake, a recreational development lake. Parcels 07.39.00300 and 
07.01.03200. Applicant is requesting a variance from Sections 702 and 904.5 of the Shoreland Management 
Ordinance for a proposed replacement of a nonconforming structure with a new structure that will increase the 
road right-of-way setback nonconformity. 

Enclosed Document(s): 
 48-V-21 application 
 2020 aerial imagery w/2’ elevation contours  

 
The request is to remove all existing improvements on this small, substandard lot and replace them with a new 34’ x 55’ 
two-story (29.5’ H) residence with an attached garage and also install two new holding tanks. The proposal will cause the 
impervious surface area percentage to be 27.5%. Staff spoke to Mr. Murray, the authorized agent, about the need for a 
stormwater management plan per the Mississippi Headwaters Comprehensive Plan requirement for such when the 25% 
impervious surface area threshold will be exceeded. He has the MPCA stormwater pollution prevention plan certification 
and will be preparing and submitting a plan. As with the Wall application, this property is in the Mississippi River 
Headwaters Corridor which means if the application is approved, it will also need to be certified by the Mississippi 
Headwaters Board in order to be valid. 

Staff’s thoughts on this application are essentially the same as those shared for the Wall application. While staff 
appreciates that the existing improvements will be removed, the scale of the new proposal needs to be reduced some so 
that it better fits the lot and neighborhood. 

Below are the findings of fact questions for your consideration: 
 
1. Is the variance in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official controls?  

           Yes (   )  No ( X ) 
Why or why not? The lot size, width, and depth are such that coupled with Wolf Lake Road bisecting the lot, a 
variance of some sort is required in order to build on the lot. The proposal is to remove all existing improvements 
that are nonconforming and have the proposed structure be moved further away from the OHW than the existing – 
which are positives. The negatives are the size of the proposed structure is a bit too large for the small, seasonal 
residence neighborhood feel and it results in an impervious surface area overage that leaves little room for effective 
mitigation. 

2.   Is the property owner proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control? 
              Yes (  )  No ( X  ) 

Why or why not? While it is appreciated that the existing improvements are proposed to be removed, the scale of 
the proposed new structure is a bit too large for the lot and neighborhood feel of small, single story seasonal lake 
cabins on small lots. 

3.  Is the need for a variance due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the current or prior property 
owners?          

            Yes (  X )  No (  ) 



August 23, 2021 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Hearing/Meeting Staff Report 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 Why or why not? The lot is extremely small at 20,760 sq. ft., 100’ in width, and ~200’ in depth with Wolf Lake Road 
bisecting the center of the lot. With the OHW and road right-of-way structure setbacks, it is not possible to place any 
structure on the lot without some sort of variance. 

4.  Will the issuance of the variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 
             Yes (   )  No ( X ) 

Why or why not? The locality consists of similarly sized/shaped lots that are also sandwiched between Wolf and the 
unclassified flowage that runs behind the lots into Little Wolf Lake. Most of the properties are seasonal residences 
as is this lot. Some of the lots have been redeveloped in recent years with new houses of a similar scale to what is 
proposed for this lot, but the majority of lots are still covered by small single story seasonal cabins with which this 
proposed large residence would not be compatible.  

5. Does the stated practical difficulty involve more than just economic considerations?        
          Yes (  X )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? Economics are not cited in the application as a practical difficulty. The difficulty is the lot’s small 
size, narrowness, lack of depth, and being sandwiched between Wolf and Mud Lakes. 

 



HUBBARD COUNTY  
Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes  
6:00 p.m. on Monday, August 23, 2021 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Variance Application 48-V-21 by Vicki Ronkowski: Lots 5 and 6, Crescent Beach, Section 1, Township 
145, Range 32, Farden Township on Wolf Lake, a recreational development lake. Parcels 07.39.00300 
and 07.01.03200. Applicant is requesting a variance from Sections 702 and 904.5 of the Shoreland 
Management Ordinance for a proposed replacement of a nonconforming structure with a new structure 
that will increase the road right-of-way setback nonconformity. 

Vicky Ronkowski, 32560 Wolf Lake Road, Cass Lake, MN, and Matt Murray, 304 3rd Street, Bemidji, MN, 
authorized agent for the applicant, presented the application.  

Murray stated Vicky’s family is growing, so she is looking for a way to accommodate an addition with her 
children and grandchildren at the cabin. She is proposing to eliminate all of the existing structures on the 
property and combine all of the uses in one, single cabin that is proposed to be setback an additional 9’ 
from the ordinary high water mark than the current cabin is. Everything would be condensed into one 
structure. She is seeking a variance for the setback from the ordinary high water mark, a variance from 
what is designated as the road right-of-way on a plat, and a variance for impervious surface coverage. 

Kovacovich commented we had some discussion about the unique road situation. It is platted in one 
place, and the road is actually built in another. We had some discussion about the ability to move that 
structure further from Wolf Lake and still allow enough of a comfort zone with the platted road. We all 
think it will never be used, but we don’t know what may come in the future. In order to leave yourself a 
little room, would you be amenable to moving that back 8’ or 9’? 

Ronkowski answered yes, I would. 

Grob clarified that would put it at about 38’ or 39’ from the ordinary high water mark. 

Murray added 38’ might be preferable to 39’. 

Kovacovich stated let’s go with 38’ then. 

Grob commented my biggest concern is the size of the structure compared to whatever already exists on 
that lot. Including the guest cabin, if I did the calculations right, it is still over 1,200 sq. ft. The proposed 
new structure would have over 3,000 sq. ft. of living space and about 700 sq. ft. of garage. That is a pretty 
large structure for that lot and location. It should be scaled back a little bit in size. One thought that I had 
was to not have a second floor over the garage, which would save about 700 sq. ft. if I did my calculations 
properly. There is probably a bedroom there? 

Ronkowski answered it is going to be unfinished above the garage. 

Grob asked why do you want to build that unfinished space? 

Ronkowski replied with the thought that my children or grandchildren would want to finish it at some time. 

Murray stated the additional square footage does not increase the impervious surface, so I think the idea 
was to make the most of the space for the future. The cabin livable area isn’t a significant increase as far 
as the footprint goes. A lot of it is just associated with storage. The overall footprint, when we were looking 
at other cabins in the area, the overall structure area isn’t significantly larger than what is in the area, 
especially if you go down the beach a little ways.  

Johnson asked do you use the current structure seasonally, or year-round? 



HUBBARD COUNTY  
Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes  
6:00 p.m. on Monday, August 23, 2021 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Ronkowski answered seasonally. 

Johnson clarified on this new one, will you be using it year-round? 

Ronkowski responded we will have it insulated and able to use it, but I won’t live out there year-round. 

Johnson asked how often do you pump your septic tank now? 

Ronkowski replied it has only been me this summer, but I have three new grandchildren. One time, right 
now, but when we have been busy it is usually twice. We pump it once now, but I am also going to have 
two holding tanks now instead of one. 

Johnson said it looked like it would be about 3,000 gallons, and the design for what you are building for 
looks like it will be able to easily do 600 gallons a day. Do you know how much you will be pumping that 
if you have a family in that house? 

Ronkowski answered I don’t. 

Johnson stated every five days it would be pumped. I am not against holding tanks at all, and I know that 
you would do everything right for your lake, but in my own opinion it does encourage people to not use 
the system correctly.  

Kovacovich opened for public comment. 

No public comment was given. 

Kovacovich closed public comment. 

Grob mentioned I am still have difficulty supporting this large of a structure on this lot.  

Ronkowski stated my architect says it is 1,140 sq. ft. on the main floor.  

Grob said that is about what you have now, and you are adding 1,870 on the second floor. 

Ronkowski answered according to my architect it is 1,122. 

Grob clarified that big space over the garage could become living space at some point, and that calculates 
out at about 1,800 sq. ft. If you took what you currently have for a house, guest cabin, and carport, that is 
a little over 1,300 sq. ft. You are building something that is going to be close to 3,800 sq. ft. if you include 
the garage. 

Murray asked you are calculating both stories in that case, right? 

Grob explained if you take the footprint, it is an awfully large structure for that lot. What is the current 
design? How many bedrooms on each floor? 

Ronkowski answered three bedrooms on the top floor and a bathroom. 

Grob asked that doesn’t include that unfinished space over the garage? 

Ronkowski responded correct. 



HUBBARD COUNTY  
Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes  
6:00 p.m. on Monday, August 23, 2021 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Murray stated the livable area on the main floor is about 1,156 sq. ft., and the combined garage/storage 
area/mechanical room is 714 sq. ft. 

Kovacovich asked what is the current footprint of all the structures on the lot? 

Grob replied 1,229 sq. ft. including the little guest cottage. 

Murray stated I had 1,329 sq. ft. 

Kovacovich commented it is 1,329 sq. ft., and you are proposing to go to 1,870 sq. ft.? Personally, I am 
more concerned with the footprint and what that does for impervious surface rather than if there is livable 
space above or below it. From my standpoint I am keened in more on the actual square footage being 
proposed. Is there a reason for not adding a drainfield? Is there just no room? 

Murray explained we did explore options across the road. There is a wetland and creek over there. There 
isn’t really enough room to get the size that would be required across the road. 

Kovacovich asked even with a mound system? 

Murray replied correct. That was based on the designer’s opinion. It is irregular shaped and that 
contributed to the problem. The setback from the right-of-way did not leave a lot of room that could be 
used for a drainfield. 

Kovacovich commented and which right-of-way do you use? 

Petersen asked is what they are proposing for a septic system, with the layout of this home, do you find it 
reasonable in your opinion? 

Johnson answered yes. The holding tank, if they have full capacity use, it would fill in five days and you 
would be pumping a lot. There are options for different types of systems, even if you have a smaller area, 
to use what area you could with timed dose systems for small areas. I don’t know if that was ever looked 
at? 

Grob stated these are both 1,500 gallon tanks? 

Johnson agreed. 

Andres asked in the future if they sell the property, if someone decides to live there year-round, it has to 
be pumped every five days? 

Johnson clarified if they use their 600 gallons a day, which it is designed for. That is what four bedrooms 
is designed for. 

Andres continued so possibly in the future we would look at maybe another variance for a septic drainfield 
somewhere? 

Johnson asked Buitenwerf would your office be able to do that administratively, or would that trigger a 
variance? 



HUBBARD COUNTY  
Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes  
6:00 p.m. on Monday, August 23, 2021 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Buitenwerf explained that flowage is not a public water, so there wouldn’t be a setback from that. My best 
guess is that you would have to have an above ground mound of some kind and dose it. That would 
certainly help. It is going to get spendy otherwise.  

Johnson added which is going to encourage not using it correctly. It is a concern. 

Murray stated I think there is maybe one drainfield on that segment of shoreline right now. Maybe one 
mound system or two. There are a lot of cabins that are in the same boat. I know there are people living 
out there year-round.  

Johnson mentioned they are not building four bedroom, two-story houses. The one that we just passed 
tonight has a mound system with an alternate site just down the road from her.  

Grob asked is there an issue with running lines underneath the road? 

Johnson replied that can be done. The right-of-way might be an issue that we don’t know about either. 

Kovacovich explained we are struggling with septic, lack of a drainfield, and what that might mean for the 
future with this size structure being built.  

Johnson agreed. That is my hang-up. Did you have a designer look into doing a Type III system? 

Murray answered I know the Type III discussion was had to some degree. The biggest thing right now is 
that her family is going to come and go. They are not going to be living there. I think it was maybe advised 
that it did not make a lot of sense for what she was needing. That had a reduced size drainfield and then 
the dosing like you were talking about. I think the recommendation was that for what she was going to be 
using it for, it didn’t seem necessary. Most of the time it is going to be just her, but when there are holidays 
she wants to be able to accommodate them until they go home again. The demand on a daily basis is just 
not going to be there right now.  

Johnson stated I have a higher priority on that spot for a septic than I do for parking.  

Kovacovich commented I think the struggle is not the immediate use, but what happens once we approve 
this. It is forever. I think we are all struggling with what that forever could mean. If that property gets sold 
and someone moves in there, we are dealing with a completely different situation than a single person 
living there with occasional guests at times during the summer.  

Ronkowski added I don’t know if this matters, but it has been in my family for over 60 years. I have been 
going there for 60 years myself, and prior to that my grandpa owned it. There is no intention of ever selling 
it.  

Kovacovich explained we can’t put a condition on that you can’t sell it. 

Murray asked maybe there could be a condition that no structure can ever be placed on the area across 
the road? That way we can ensure space for a septic system there if the use changes. 

Johnson stated I would be in favor of that. 

Grob mentioned I can easily see that the storage area over the garage could become living space 
someday with current or future owners. I would not be in favor unless that second story is not approved, 
or a condition that it could never be used as living space, only storage. If there is already a potential septic 



HUBBARD COUNTY  
Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes  
6:00 p.m. on Monday, August 23, 2021 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

system issue, and your family might grow, I would be concerned that it would get beyond what it should 
be. I am only supportive if there was a condition placed that it can only be used for storage and not living 
space, or eliminated. 

Ronkowski asked could it be insulated, but nothing built there? 

Grob clarified it can’t be bedrooms. You could use it for storage. Insulation is fine, but it can’t be used for 
any kind of living activity. 

Murray asked are we talking about only the portion over the proposed garage? 

Grob answered the 714 sq. ft. over the garage.  

Kovacovich asked Buitenwerf I am struggling with the lack of drainfield, and I don’t know the history of 
different conditions. Would it be appropriate to ask a designer to come out and tell us exactly what is 
feasible across that road as far as a drainfield? Without knowing, I am still concerned about long-term 
here. Is that something that we could ask for before we moved on this request? 

Buitenwerf replied certainly. Mr. Larson that did the design for the holding tanks has the appropriate license 
to evaluate that and provide input on the feasibility for using that area on the other side of the road. 

Andres agreed. My suggestion was also that if the cabin was reduced in size, would a drainfield fit 
anywhere on the lot? 

Grob stated I would be supportive of getting a design for what a drainfield could like look across the road, 
for size and what it could accommodate.  

Petersen agreed. 

Kovacovich made a motion to table the application to allow the applicant time to submit a written report 
from a licensed septic system designer as to the feasibility and options for installing a drainfield on the 
property such as in the grassed area on the southeast side of Wolf Lake Road. 
 
Andres seconded the motion that passed 5 – 0. 
 



September 27, 2021 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Hearing/Meeting Staff Report 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Variance Application 48-V-21 by Vicki Ronkowski: Lots 5 and 6, Crescent Beach, Section 1, Township 145, 
Range 32, Farden Township on Wolf Lake, a recreational development lake. Parcels 07.39.00300 and 
07.01.03200. Applicant is requesting a variance from Sections 702 and 904.5 of the Shoreland Management 
Ordinance for a proposed replacement of a nonconforming structure with a new structure that will increase the 
road right-of-way setback nonconformity. 

Enclosed Document(s): 
 Amendment to Variance Application 48-V-21 containing requested SSTS drainfield design  
 Provided at the August 2021 hearing: 

o 48-V-21 application 
o 2020 aerial imagery w/2’ elevation contours  

This application was first considered by the Board at the August 2021 hearing. The application was tabled for 
the purpose of having the applicant submit additional information from the licensed SSTS designer that 
addresses the feasibility and options for installing a drainfield on the lot. Enclosed is an amendment to the 
application that proposes reducing the number of bedrooms in the proposed house from four to three, moving 
the house further back from the OHW so it would be 2’ from the road ROW as discussed at the August 
meeting, and showing how a Type I standard mound drainfield can be installed on the portion of the lot on the 
southeast side of Wolf Lake Road. As the flowage behind the lot is not classified as a public water, there is no 
related 150’ setback with which to contend. The amendment also contains information on the size of the 
proposed dwelling relative to other dwellings in the neighborhood. The landowner wants to be able to use a 
holding tank during her duration of residency. As enforcing a possible condition to allow that and require a 
drainfield to be installed when the use changes to year-round would be very difficult, staff recommends 
conditioning the approval on the Type I SSTS being installed. 

Below are the findings of fact questions for your consideration that are predicated on there now being a viable 
Type I drainfield site available. 
 
1. Is the variance in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official controls?  

           Yes ( X )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? The lot size, width, and depth are such that coupled with Wolf Lake Road bisecting the lot, a 
variance of some sort is required in order to build on the lot. The proposal is to remove all existing improvements 
that are nonconforming and have the proposed structure be moved further away from the OHW than the existing – 
which are positives. The ability to install a standard septic system to service the proposed house is also a positive as 
very few of the lots in the neighborhood have sufficient room for such. 

2.   Is the property owner proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control? 
              Yes ( X )  No (  ) 

Why or why not? It is appreciated that the existing improvements are proposed to be removed. The applicant has 
done a good job of moving the proposed dwelling as far from the lake as possible and providing a septic system 
design showing how a mound drainfield can be installed to service the dwelling. The stormwater plan will also 
mitigate runoff generated by the new structure and related improvements. 

3.  Is the need for a variance due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the current or prior property 
owners?          



September 27, 2021 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Hearing/Meeting Staff Report 

Page 2 of 2 
 

            Yes (  X )  No (  ) 
 Why or why not? The lot is extremely small at 20,760 sq. ft., 100’ in width, and ~200’ in depth with Wolf Lake Road 

bisecting the center of the lot and its right-of-way consuming a large area. With the OHW and road right-of-way 
structure setbacks, it is not possible to place any structure on the lot without some sort of variance. 

4.  Will the issuance of the variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 
             Yes ( X  )  No (  ) 

Why or why not? The locality consists of similarly sized/shaped lots that are also sandwiched between Wolf and the 
unclassified flowage that runs behind the lots into Little Wolf Lake. Most of the properties are seasonal residences 
as is this lot. An increasing number of the lots have been redeveloped in recent years with new houses of a similar 
scale to what is proposed for this lot so this proposed redevelopment will be in keeping with other dwelling rebuilds 
allowed on other neighboring lots by variance in recent years.  

5. Does the stated practical difficulty involve more than just economic considerations?        
          Yes (  X )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? Economics are not cited in the application as a practical difficulty. The difficulty is the lot’s small 
size, narrowness, lack of depth, and being sandwiched between Wolf Lake and the flowage that goes into Mud Lake. 

 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

HUBBARD COUNTY  

Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes  

6:00 p.m. on Monday, September 27, 2021 

Vice Chairman Ken Grob opened the meeting with the following additional members 
present: Tim Johnson, and Mark Petersen. Also present was Environmental Services 
Director Eric Buitenwerf. Members Andres and Kovacovich, and ex-officio member and 
County Board Vice-Chair Ted Van Kempen were absent. 

Grob started the meeting by reading the procedure by which the meeting of the Planning 
Commission/Board of Adjustment will be conducted to the audience. 

New Business:  

Board of Adjustment: 

Variance Application 48-V-21 by Vicki Ronkowski: Lots 5 and 6, Crescent Beach, 
Section 1, Township 145, Range 32, Farden Township on Wolf Lake, a recreational 
development lake. Parcels 07.39.00300 and 07.01.03200. Applicant is requesting a 
variance from Sections 702 and 904.5 of the Shoreland Management Ordinance for a 
proposed replacement of a nonconforming structure with a new structure that will increase 
the road right-of-way setback nonconformity. 

Vicki Ronkowski, 32560 Wolf Lake Road, Cass Lake, MN, and Matt Murray, 304 3rd Street, 
Bemidji, MN, agent for the applicant, presented the application. 

Grob stated you were at the August meeting and this was tabled. At that time there was an 
application for a variance to remove all the structures and build a new home. We tabled the 
application in order to have a licensed SSTS designer address the feasibility of a drainfield. 
At that time we did discuss agreeing to relocate the home to about a 38’ ordinary high water 
mark setback. You have done the stormwater analysis and come up with a design for a 
drainfield. You have reduced the size to three bedrooms, the drainfield is feasible with a 
Type I system, and you have an adequate stormwater plan proposed. 

Murray added the only other thing would be the neighborhood overview just to put the size 
of that structure into scope relative to what is existing in the neighborhood.  

Johnson asked when the other structure gets removed, it will be gone permanently? 

Ronkowski answered yes, the shed, bunkhouse, carport, and house. 

Petersen clarified I want to be clear that you are intending to install and use that drainfield 
right away. We are not doing a holding tank situation? That is not what you are asking for, 
correct? 

Murray replied for now she would prefer to have just the holding tanks, but if the Board feels 
that it is important to have the drainfield installed immediately, then she is willing to do so.  

Johnson added I believe that we would be doing her a favor to have it put in now. 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Petersen said that is how I would like to see it go.  

Grob opened for public comment. 

No public comment was given. 

Grob closed public comment. 

Grob made a motion to approve the variance as requested in the application amendment 
dated 09/16/2021 with the following conditions: 

 
1. The dwelling unit must be built per the updated site plan sketch submitted in 

the application amendment dated September 16, 2021. 
2. The stormwater plan for the property must be implemented as submitted. 
3. The Type 1 septic system with a mound drainfield per the design submitted 

in the application must be installed when the new dwelling unit is 
constructed. 

4. All existing structures on the lot must be removed before construction of the 
new dwelling unit may commence. 

  
Petersen seconded the motion that passed 3 – 0. 
 
The Board adopted the staff report findings of fact. 
 
Findings of Fact 
 
1. Is the variance in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official 

controls?  
         Yes ( X )  No (   ) 

Why or why not? The lot size, width, and depth are such that coupled with Wolf Lake 
Road bisecting the lot, a variance of some sort is required in order to build on the lot. 
The proposal is to remove all existing improvements that are nonconforming and 
have the proposed structure be moved further away from the OHW than the existing 
– which are positives. The ability to install a standard septic system to service the 
proposed house is also a positive as very few of the lots in the neighborhood have 
sufficient room for such. 

2.   Is the property owner proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not 
permitted by an official control? 

            Yes ( X )  No (   ) 
Why or why not? It is appreciated that the existing improvements are proposed to be 
removed. The applicant has done a good job of moving the proposed dwelling as far 
from the lake as possible and providing a septic system design showing how a 
mound drainfield can be installed to service the dwelling. The stormwater plan will 
also mitigate runoff generated by the new structure and related improvements. 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

3.  Is the need for a variance due to circumstances unique to the property and not 
created by the current or prior property owners?      
         Yes ( X )  No (   ) 

 Why or why not? The lot is extremely small at 20,760 sq. ft., 100’ in width, and ~200’ 
in depth with Wolf Lake Road bisecting the center of the lot and its right-of-way 
consuming a large area. With the OHW and road right-of-way structure setbacks, it 
is not possible to place any structure on the lot without some sort of variance. 

4.  Will the issuance of the variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 
           Yes ( X )  No (   ) 

Why or why not? The locality consists of similarly sized/shaped lots that are also 
sandwiched between Wolf and the unclassified flowage that runs behind the lots into 
Little Wolf Lake. Most of the properties are seasonal residences as is this lot. An 
increasing number of the lots have been redeveloped in recent years with new 
houses of a similar scale to what is proposed for this lot so this proposed 
redevelopment will be in keeping with other dwelling rebuilds allowed on other 
neighboring lots by variance in recent years.  

5. Does the stated practical difficulty involve more than just economic considerations?    
         Yes ( X )  No (   ) 
Why or why not? Economics are not cited in the application as a practical difficulty. 
The difficulty is the lot’s small size, narrowness, lack of depth, and being sandwiched 
between Wolf Lake and the flowage that goes into Mud Lake. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Staci Lee 

Recording Secretary 



 

 

 

 

 

Action/Discussion 
 

 

Change of Date for next board meeting 

Executive Directors Report 

 



Executive Director Report 
September - October 2021 

 
Personnel, Budget, Administration, Information & Education, Correspondence 
 

1. Reviewed monthly budget. 
2. Prepared monthly agenda packet. 
3. Sent in monthly expense report. 
4. Sent press release to newspapers. 
5. Reviewed potential variances that may be coming before the Board next month. 
6. Received fully executed copy of LCCMR Whiskey Creek contract with the DNR. 
7. Sent in LSOHC reimbursement. 
 

Meetings & Networking 
 

1. Attended the Camp Ripley Open house and was able to distribute literature and 
Guidebooks to the thousands of people that attended. 

2. Attended Rotary Park dedication and gave an awareness presentation about the MHB 
and what we do.  I thanked Rotary for their work in protecting the Miss. River. 

3. Called LLBO to discuss a possible partnership with them on cultural resources.  If they 
are willing to work with us on this, than it will be a new opportunity for me to write a 
proposal to the Arts and Heritage program. 

4. Attended MPCA WRAPS cycle 2 kickoff meeting.  In cycle 2, the MPCA will focus more on 
local priorities for monitoring and assessment. 

5. The MHHCP easement and acquisition program did very well in the recommendation for 
funding.  The Chair’s proposal was for $4,717M which is the highest dollar amount the 
program has been recommended for. 

6. Set up page for biennial conference so attendees can view powerpoints and videos after 
conference. 

7. Talked with the International Erosion Control Assoc. and they are interested in having a 
webnar in 2022 about shoreline protection practices on the Mississippi river in multiple 
states (upper, central, and southern states).  I referred them to the Crow Wing SWCD 
since they have many projects they have done in the upper Mississippi. 

8. Attended Morrison county DRT meeting for a variance review. 
9. Had zoom meeting with U of MN architectural graduate students to discuss who the 

MHB is, our role, and conservation results.  They want to write a Master’s paper about 
the scenic and wild management of the River, but needed to have a conversation about 
it with me to help them narrow their focus.  They seemed interested on the Lake Irving 
project so I’ll see where it goes from there. 

10. Organized AIS coordinators interviews at Lum Park to develop content for next year. 
11. I met with YMCA director Shane Riffle, and Brainerd triathalon organizer Dan 

Fundingsland to discuss an improvement to the MHB paddling day.  We decided that we 
could talk with Brainerd Chamber of Commerce and Brainerd Riverfront committee 



about making this an event where we receive money for this event and help promote it 
better among recreational interest groups. 

12. Had a phone call with DNR Seth Gorham to talk about geofencing around chronic 
wasting disease area.  I gave him my opinion, and directed him to Beltrami county AIS as 
they are using geofencing as well. 


	1 10.28.21 Agenda
	2 Att consent cover-minutes
	3 21-9.15 minutes
	5 MHB Sept. DETAIL
	6 11.1.21 Press release
	6.2 Snapshots Story 1 BeltramiSWCD Lake Irving
	7  Att coverP&Z
	8 Hubard Ronkowski variance
	48-V-21 Ronkowski variance app sans SSTS info
	48-V-21 Ronkowski 2020 imagery
	Aug 23, 2021 BOA mtg staff rpt
	Aug 23, 2021 BOA mtg minutes
	Sept 27, 2021 BOA mtg staff rpt
	Sept. 27, 2021 BOA mtg minutes Ronkowski

	9 Att action-discussion
	21-10.28 Executive Staff Report

